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The real threat of the settlement of Assabet
Village to supersede both Stow and Sudbury becan in 18646,
when Amory Maynerd snd William Knight began the opera-
tions which establicshed their woolen mills on the Assabet
River. The Villace becan to assume new life. The water
power which had been used only by Asa Smith's combination
saw, grist and cider mill located near the bridce on what
is now called 1ill Street, and afterwards called "Jewell's
Mi11", where spindles for textile mills were made, was
purchased. 'On November 24, 1845, lir. Kni-ht purchased
from Asa Smith the "Jewell Mill" =nd two houses nearby at
Mill Street and Sumrmer Eill Lane(now called Summer Hill
Road). In the héuse now owned by
Mr. Maynard made his first residence.

Mr. Kni~ht for some years had owned and overated
a carpet fectory at Saxonville(a section of nearby rFraming-
ham), 2nd which had recently been destroyed by fire. Ilir.
Miaynard had left school at the age of fcurteen to enter the
sawmill owned by Issac linynard, his fother, at Fort leadow,
EKarlboro, 2lso helping on the farm. The elder Faynard dicd
vhen Amory wss sixteen; the boy took charge of the businecs,
carrying it on successfﬁlly, taking on building ~nd con-

tracting and within a short time was enploying about sixty
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men. In this way he ceme in contact with Mr. Knight, for
whom he hadidone some buildinu, and this resulted in their
partnership.for the manufacture of carpets. Wwhen the City
of Boston took over Ifort iieadow Fond, the sawmill lost
it's water rights, and ¥r. l~ynard turned to Assabet Vil-
lage as the scene of his further operations. On lay 19,
1846, he made hig first land purchase from Eben S. RBrooks,
this land being on toth sicdes of the "Elsibeth"River.

Lend was also bourht at thic time from Thomas H. and Siles
P. Brooks, and of Eaman, Georce and Eénjaminﬂ Smith, con-
tinuing his purchases urtil he controlled all the avail-
able water power, water rights »nd mill sites in this vi-
cinity. In Juiy 1846, ro less than thirty-four deeds are
recorded, covering his rurciices,--n nmap of November 1846
shows that he owned one hundred =nd nine acres of cholice
lend in the heart of the Villare. Lithin a few years he
had ccntrol of the water »i iiis up the river to Boone's
Pond(Stow) and to Fort iicrdor Fond(.»rlborouch). It is re-
lated, when lir., Maynard sveprcoct=d -: son Smith regarding =a
larce tract of lend he desired tc ruichase, Kr. Smith was
not favorably impressed iy rFis 1.o-s, =»nd doubted his being

|
a desirable citlzen end nvestlen,bis 2bility to paey for the

land.

To make the 331 -1 : cre ~table scurce of power
he bou ht a strip of laré (re- 1: ~avy Smith, two and one-
half rods wide, from the river itc » »t is now the mill

pond; dug a canal and led the '« ter Lo what was then a low,

swampy hollow with a t-¢nut Yrc¢+ 1 ine throuzh it. The
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tract was cleared of trees, an earthen dam built ecross
from the Thompson Street side to the Main Street side,
ne2r where the present railroad crossing is located, mak-
ine everything ready for the erection of the mill build-
ings, for which his early training had fitted him.
(Note:~ Artemss Whitney, who was born in that part of
Stow, which is now Maynard, was cbsely associated with
Mr, lMaynard as a friend =2nd advisor, took the contract to
build the(Ben Smith's)dam across the river and did the
first day's vwork on it alone. Also, helped to build the
present Mill pond, and l1la2id the foundation for the first
100 houses built to accommodate the mill operatives.)

The Ben Smith Dam having been thrown scross the
river, the water led into the [ill pond, water wheels be-
ing installed, they were ready for the mills. The first
building was a wooden structure, 50 x iOO feet, =2nd wes
located at the corner of what was later called lsin Street
and lalnut Street. (Note:-There was no Main Street when kr.
Maynard came to the village. On September 22, 1848, Stow
appointed a comrittee"to contract for the buildine of a
new road and bridee as ordered by the County Commisgioners
on the netition of William H. Knicht and others." sudbury
voted on April 2, 1849 "to way for the road and bridre at
Knicht's factery, 31,310. Tre bridee was a two-spen wocd-
en one resting on a center pier of stone. Wwalnut Street
was ori-inally built on the scuth side of the river from
Mrin Street to Thompson Street. In 1872, it was necescary
to use this land for- -additional mill buildings, and L“walnut
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Street was relocated on the north side of the river and anA
iron bridpeéerected.)

In the Spring of 1847, they becan to make yorn,
end soon after carpets. (Note:-The former lMary wood, moth-
er of William E. Gutteridre, =uthor of "A Brief History of
the Town of Maynard, 1921", wound the first bobbin in the
factory. Robert Gutteridge, his father, was a carpet
weaver. VWorked sixty-six hcurs per week, 6:30 A.M. to
6:30 F.¥., with forty-five minutes rest at noon.) (Note:-
A plece of the first carpet made at the factory is now
owned by the Maynard Historical Society.) The company was
aranted a charter of incorrpecration by the Genersl Court in
1849, 1In 1855, the industry was contained in three wooden
buildines, gnd consisted of eleven worsted combers, four
sets of cards »nd fifty-two hond cerpet looms and employed
one hundred and twenty-five hands. (note:- Cne of these
three bulldines was used as o woeel shop; it was moved to

whetre it presently stands,
Main Street, /now number 165-169, =nd converted into & fac-
tory boarding house and then into sepnrate tenements.)

At Pr. Enicht's retirerent dr. Maynard took over
the entire business and ren it successfully until the pan-
ic of 1657 crippled him so badly that he failed and the
mills were sold at auction. 1r %' ¢ conduct of his mills,
Mr, Maynard's two sons, Levenze ~ud il1liam were associat-
ed with him. In 165G, he mure ased “rom the City of Eos-
ton the Fort Meadow(larlbhco:cv 1 )ieccorveolr containing three
hundred acres, =2nd he had r» ovieoucty, in 1E46, obtained
entire control of Boone's lonc(sto ¢ tudson), contain-
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ing two hundred acres by his land purchases and flowace
rizhts, addinz materially to their valvation. In 1862,
the mills were reorganized as a corporation, with the
name Assabet Manufacturing Company, F.A. Goddard, Presi-
dent; T. Quincy Brown, Treasurer; Amory Maynard, "Aecent".
The small buildings were replaced by others of more sub-
stential and enlarged capacity. New machinery was in-
stalled and the manufacture of carpets dropped,-- blank-
ets, flannels and cloth being substituted. The Civil Viar
was in progress and larze Go&ernment orders were executbed,
which enabled the company to undertake an extensive pro-
gram of expansion.(Note:-In 1864, a large brick icehouse
with 40,000 tons capacity, which had been erected in 1850
by N.J. Wyeth where the Front Street houses now stand, and
ice cut from the Mill pond and shipped to Boston, was pur-
chased by the Assabet llanufacturing Company, as it was no
longer being used. The building was torn down and the
bricks vsed for ﬁill construction. 7The granite arch and
keystone may be seen over the door of No. 12 mill on Main
Street(The building in which the Dicital Corporation of-
fices are now located.) The business continued successful
and several larce buildings were added from time to tine.,
The number of employees became so creat that tenements to
house them had to be built by the‘company. streets were
laid out 2nd an entire cormmunity life «rew up arcund the
factory.

Mr. (faynard continued ag arent until failing
health in 185 necessitated relinguishing the nosition to
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' his son Loreﬁzo, with his ¢grandson, William H. Mayhard,

- as Superintendent. In 1E47 the valuation of the business
was set at $150,000, and on the death of Mr. Maynard in
1890(March 5), it was 31, 500,000.

In 1886, the present red brick chimney, two hun-
dred and seven feet hich, was erected. It is still in
daily use.

In 1892, the fine "Town Clock" on the mill was
glven by Lorenzo Maynard and placed in position in the
Fall of that year. The tower was erected by the Assabet
Manufacturing Company. (Note:-It is still operatihg and
it serves as a landmark for folks of yesterday and today.)

Dull times and poor business during 1893-18%4
and later finally drove the company into insolvency on
Decerber 31, 1898. BReceivers were appointed who kept the
mills running on a recduced output until May 1, 1899, when
the American Wcolen Comreny boucht them for $400,000, At
that time it was the lsrerest wcolen mill in the United
States, with sixty-six sets of cards and three hundred and
fifty broad looms. The American oolen Company scon after
began to improve the property, replacing the o0ld machinery
with new and increasing ite coracity. (ilote:-The Assabet
Manufacturing Company while in oreration had conducted o
savings bank where the opcviaiives, es well as others, de-
posited their money. .ben ilic corpany failed the bank did
also. The Assisnees on Avsust 12, 1899 paid to the depos-
S =+ o o e el
dividend of 33”Y. This vas firsl. ‘be Lown of Kaynard was
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among the depositors and lost 33333.33. The CGeneral Laws
now prohibiﬁ this type of banking.)

In lay 1901, the mill office was enlarged and
new rules for entering the mill in effect. The new
"Riverside"” 5uilding constructed,-- the finishing room
located on the bottom floor and the finish burlers on the
second flcor. In 1902, another floor was added to this
building. With its modern windows ;;;s building looked
well from the Sudbury Street-bridge.

In 1901, to make room for the_new weave room,
the freight sheds near the 0ld sawmill were moved across
Walnut Street to company owned land on Hillside Street.
The sawmill torn down and rebuilt on the river bank not
far from the freicht sheds on Walnut Street.

June 1901, the Heardon estate off Parker Street
purchased to build sixty tenements.

July 1901, Agent Amory Maynard, 2nd, and Super-
intendent George Hinchcliffe assisted in laying the first
stone of the new No. 5 Mill on Thompson Street. fThis
buildine when completed will be the largest woolen mill
in the United States,-- 640 ft. long, 106 ft. vide and
five stories hirh. The powerhouse adds fifty feet more.
It will be known as a 100 set mill. Dynamos replasced the
rasometer. The buildine was comvnleted in l.arch 1902,
(Nlote:-Since its birth the plant has been under the super-
vision of the Laynard family, snd it is by sinecular coin-
cldence that the man who now stands at the head of the
mammoth textile establishrent should besr the name of the
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en who cave it it's birth, that of Amory MHaynard. He 1s
to retire on October 1, the last of the family connected
with the Assabet Mills---- Amory Maynard, lst, until 1€85;
Lorenzo, his son, Supérintendent; William MHaynard, 1lst,
Acssistant Superintendent; Lilliem lMaynard, 2nd, Superin-
tendent; Amory lMaynard, 2nd, Suverintendent and alsoc the
first Agent under the American Woolen Company. )

In 1601, a lerce bozrding house with eighty
rooms was built on Mair Street, 2nd an old mill barn wes
torn down to make room for it. This was later known as
the Ascsabet and Middlesex Ticuses, and is now the site of
the United States Post Cffice.

In 1902, the i‘zhoney estate of Waltham Street
purchased and staked out {or tenements. In all one hund-
red and sixty erected. Also, sewerage system installed
by the Company to take care of these tenements. To erect
another boarding house nenr the Central House on uiper
Main Street, where a similar structure was just completed.
(Note:-~ These were the Lirto Fouse and the Wwest End
Ecuse. Cne was mxxpirizily destroyed by fire several years
ago and the other is now occupried rortly by Buscemi's er—
ket;) Also, built five neu “lockg,-- two on Sudbury Ccurt
and three on company rreperty nesar the Pzper 11111 dam.
With the installation of dyrones ir the new power plent,
electricty became availsrble ~2d on September 1, 1902, &

contract was made betwecer tie i ::rican Woolen Conmpany and
the Town of laynard for 1i ! tin the town, and the old

keresene lamps pascsed i-lo c-livion.



(Note:-James Frll was the (irst merson to operate a power
Joom in the A%sabet Mills,--he had also worked as a young
man in these mills over ferty yvears ag0. )

In 1904, No. 6 mill was built.(Wote:-This is the
mill in whkich the Beacon Fublichine Compeny is now lacated.)

In 1905, e new o:fice for the mills was bullt on
Mein Street. In 1906, five new dcuble houses were bullt on
Maynard's hill,--two on Lartncuth Ccurt, two on Dartmouth
Street snd one on Elmwocd Street. In 1911, worked started
on a new storehocuse, 100 x 50 ft x five stories, out over
the Mi11l pond. Ausust 1913, rebuilt the.dam and sluiceway
at the"01d Paper Mill". (ilote:- The Asssbet Haenufacturing
Company had purchssed the Feper ki1l property in 1895.)
In 1916, a chimney of hollow brick two hundred feet high
was built near the red brick chimney. This was torn cdovm
in October 1956.

In 1918, No. 1 111 wes built over the liill pond,
500 ft. long, and a steam turkine ecntvine installed. Also,
in 1918, the Gorham Brown farm was rurchased and several
new houses were built. Cne of the streets being nsmed for

Frank J. DeMars, the firct irynord -an to fall in VWorld War

I.
7L ,
Auvsust 1920, fcour horses, a barn and storehouse
located on Fillside Street v aed -ith o loss of 475,000,

The barn wWes one=hs1f of tl¢ cri inel Lorenzo iiaynard barn
thot had been moved frcw .oy prd'e hil1l. Cae of the storve-

houses was the old ongir-1 »i': ovilcine of 1846. It wes

O

moved to thls location i¢ 1¢(1.
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In 1934, the American Woolen Company became sole-
1y a manufacturing enterprise. At that time they sold at
public auction all thelr property except the mill bulldings,
because ownership of mill houses, once a necessity,was no
lonpger economically justified. liost of the houses were pur-
chased by the tenants. The Town of Maynard purchased the
0ld Assabet and Middlesex Boarding House on Main Street to
be used as a town hall. This was sold in 1962 and is now
the site of the United States Post Office.

The Great Depression of 1629,which lasted until
1939 when trouble again broke out in Europe, placed a ser-
ious pinch on the American Woolen Company and the Assabet
Mills. Sericus labor troubles also haunted the%>and in
October 1931 the mill closed down and all helﬁzgocked out.
This disvute between labor snd management saw considerable
of the machinery moved to other mills. Maynerd was faced
with real hard times, which were somewhat alleviated by the
various acencies created by the Government toc keep scme of
the people busy.

In 1941, when the United States agein became in-
volved across the oceans, end World War II began, the miil
was soon booming on a seven-day week, twenty-four hours
arcund the clock, employing over 2000 making blankets, over-
coating and suitings for the Armed forces. Following the
close of this wsr conditions came to a standstill and the
Acsabet li111ls became a casuvalty of the shifting public taste
in textiles; No lonrer were soft woolens such as were made
in Keynard in fashion. Feople wanted the herd woven wors-
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teds. Also, the synthetic wm~terials, i.e., rayon, nylon,
_dacron, polyester, etc., were malkkine heavy inroads in the
cloth manufacturing business.

1571 ;950, the Amcrican Woolen Company slosed the
Assebet Mills for scod. These mills hnd served as a baro-
neter for the Town during its existance. llost of the
townspeople and many from the surrounding tcwns found em-
ployment in them. When btusiness was ~ood 2t the mills the
Town flourished; but there were many lean periods. They
passed through thelr share of pesnics, strikes, shutdowns,
and the whole community sufferec¢ thereby. With the closing
of the mills the people of lNaynard were now facing a situ-
ation which had become too familisr in liew Encland in re-
cent yeaﬁs;'that of a'one-industry"cemmunity suddenly be-
reft of the mill payroll by vhich the community by and large
has existed. ¥

In July 1953, ten enterprisine Worcester business
men formed laynard Industriecs, Incorpornted, purchased the
hugh mill proverty for ;200,(C0.00, ~nd besgides helping the
Town to solve its unemployr ent rroblem secured the diversi-
fication denied the ccmmunity Ior morc ithr~n one hundred
yemis. lMaynard had faceé ti.e loss of iis gin le, all-imvort-
ant industry. Today scme tuwarty f'irms ~2xe doing businecss in
mill buildings, 2nd no looger ~re our economic eris all in
one backet. This has 2lsoc recvlied in « ther well-Xnown in-

dustries to locate in the G o,
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Efbérpt from "Stow,Massachusetts, 1683-1933" - Crowell.

Page 48. "Aﬁ Interesting story is told of Amory Maynard,
the founder 5f the large mill in what is now Maynard, then
Stow. Amory Maynard was a carpenter by trade; he was em-
ployed in a mill in Marlboro, now Hudson, and made frames
for bulldings. A man by the name of "Knight" came from
Saxonville from time to time, noticed young Maynard, and
sidered him a most promising young men. So he told Maynard
if he would select a suitable site, he would furnish him
money to build a mill. Maynafd looked upr and down the Ass-
abet River for sufficient water power, as there was no
electricity in those days, to run his mill. After some de-
liberation, he selected the present site of the Maynard
Mill. Dams were accordingly built, end business was flour-
ishing. 1In 1846, he purchased land on both sides of the
"Assabet" river, end from time to time, from individuals
owning land along the river, till he controlled all the
available water power, water rights and mill sites in thts
vicinity. Within a few years he enlarged his possessions
in order to control water rights up the river to Boone's
Pond and Fort Meadow. His father, Isaac Maynard had a saw-
mill at the fcot of Fort lMeadow in which he had worked, hav-
ing left school at the age of fourteen. When sixteen, his
father died, and Amory took charse of the business, till at
one time he had sixty men in his employ. In this way he
came in contact with Mr. Knisht, for whom he had done scme
building, and this resulted in their partnership for the

manufacture of carpets,



